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 August 12, 2020 

To: LAFCo Commissioners 

From: Martha Poyatos, Executive Officer 

Subject: LAFCo File No. 20-06 - Proposed annexation of 17 Redberry Ridge, Portola Valley, to 
West Bay Sanitary District On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone (OWDZ)  

Summary 

This proposal, submitted by landowner petition, requests annexation of 17 Redberry Ridge, 
Portola Valley to the On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone (OWDZ) of the West Bay Sanitary 
District. The property is already within the boundaries of the District, but is required to be 
annexed to the OWDZ in order for the District to maintain the pumping system that will be 
constructed as part of the sewer connection. The proposal has 100 percent landowner consent 
and waiver of conducting authority proceedings is also requested. Commission approval is 
recommended. 

Departmental Reports 

Town of Portola Valley: The Town's General Plan designation is low-intensity residential and 
zoning is residential estate, single-family (one to two acres per dwelling unit). Permits for the 
construction of a new single-family on the property have been reviewed and approved by the 
Town.  

West Bay Sanitary District: Annexation, permit, and connections fees will be required by the 
district prior to the connection to the District’s sewer line. The District supports the annexation 
of the property into the OWDZ.  

Executive Officer’s Report 

This proposal has been submitted by landowner petition in order to annex the parcel into the 
District’s On-Site Waste Water Disposal Zone to allow the District to maintain the pumping 
system required to connect a proposed single-family residence to public sewer. The territory 
proposed for annexation is located is in the Town of Portola Valley at 17 Redberry Ridge near 
Buck Meadow Drive. 
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The annexation area is within the sphere of influence of West Bay Sanitary District adopted by 
the Commission in 1984 and is consistent with the District’s plans for extending service. In 1988 
the parcel was annexed to the District (LAFCo File 88-3). However, at the time, the property was 
not annexed to the On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone. The property has remained vacant and 
the Town recently approved permits for construction of the new residence.   

Sections 6960.3 and 6974 of the Health and Safety Code governing sanitary districts require 
LAFCo approval for formation of, or annexation to, an On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone (Zone) 
in counties in which LAFCo has added special district members to the Commission and adopted 
Rules and Regulations Affecting the Functions and Services of Independent Special Districts. 
West Bay Sanitary District operates a Zone within its jurisdiction to maintain pumping systems 
where gravity flow to the sewer main is not possible. Annexation of this property to the Zone is 
necessary in order for the District to maintain the pumping system that will be constructed as 
part of the sewer connection. 

The annexation to the OWDZ does not constitute an annexation to the District and is not 
subject to District annexation proceedings. Thus, there will be no change to elections or tax 
rolls and no filing with the State Board of Equalization. 

Approval of annexation to the Zone is recommended. 

California Environmental Quality Act 

The proposal is categorically exempt from the environmental review requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) exempt under State CEQA Guidelines Section 
15319(a) & (b) (Annexations of Existing Facilities and Lots for Exempt Facilities). 

Request for Waiver of LAFCo Processing Fees  

The proponents are requesting a waiver of the processing fees for this application. Per the 
adopted LAFCo Fee Schedule, fees may be waived by the Commission if there is a financial 
hardship or if the application is in response to a LAFCo condition or recommendation. The 
applicant states in their letter to the Commission that was property was annexed to the District 
in 1988 which would then permit a future connection to the Districts sewer system. However, 
the construction of this connection now requires annexation to the Zone to allow the District to 
properly maintain the new connection. The annexation to the zone does not change the 
boundaries of the District or impact any other boundaries. Sections 6960.3 and 6974 of the 
Health and Safety Code requires LAFCo approval for this annexation to the OWDZ. As this does 
not require the analysis required by a District annexation and is not a condition imposed by 
LAFCo, the request to waive the processing fee is recommended.  

Recommended Commission Action, by Motion 

Approve waiver of $500 fee for Zone annexation and direct the Executive Officer to send a 
letter memorializing the Commission approval of annexation of 17 Redberry Ridge, Portola 
Valley, to the West Bay Sanitary District’s On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone (OWDZ).  

Attachments  
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A.  Annexation Application and Fee Wavier Letter for 17 Redberry Ridge, Portola Valley  

B.  Vicinity Map  

 
cc:  Sergio Ramirez, General Manager, West Bay Sanitary District  
 David Yan, Property Owner 
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